
 

Mission: To promote high-quality school readiness, voluntary pre-kindergarten and after school programs, thus increasing all children’s 
chances of achieving future educational success and becoming productive members of society. The Coalition seeks to further the physical, 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
August 3, 2020; 10:00 a.m.  

Zoom Meeting ID: 972 3450 8867 
 

I. Welcome & Introductions              Adrian Alfonso 
 

A. Roll Call 
 

II. Approval of Minutes                 Adrian Alfonso 
 

A. Motion to approve the June 2020 Board of Directors Meeting minutes.  
 

III. Chairman’s Report                Adrian Alfonso 
 
IV. Executive Committee Report              Adrian Alfonso 

 

A. Resolutions 
 

i. Resolution 06292020‐01 ‐ Authorize the President and CEO to execute an Addendum to Grant 
Agreement 2018‐2019 shown in the background section of this resolution. 

ii. Resolution 06292020‐02 ‐ Authorize the President and CEO to release a Request for Proposal 
(RFP) for Curriculum Materials for Miami‐Dade and Monroe Counties. 

iii. Resolution 06292020‐03 ‐ To approve the Early Learning Coalition’s Amendment to the Annual 
Budget for fiscal year 2019‐2020. 

 
B. Board Member Nomination 

 
i. Jane McQueen 

 
V. Audit Committee Meeting Report            Ileana Alvarez 

 
A. Verdeja, De Armas & Trujillo Audit Report 

 
VI. Finance Committee Meeting Report            Bob Eadie 

 
A. Resolution 08032020‐01 Authorize the President and CEO to submit a request to and seek approval 

from, the Office of Head Start Region IV to modify the provision of services by allowing the Early Head 
Start program to offer a home‐based option. 

B. Resolution 08032020‐02 Authorize the President and CEO to release a Request for Proposal for 
Professional Development Resources for Positive Adult/Child Interactions for Miami‐Dade and Monroe 
Counties. 

C. Resolution 08032020‐03 Authorize the President and CEO to release a Request for Proposal for 
Comprehensive Cleaning Services. 
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D. Resolution 0803020‐04 To approve the Early Learning Coalition’s Additional Amendment to the Annual 
Budget for fiscal year 2019‐2020. 

E. Resolution 08032020‐05 Approval of the Evaluation Committee’s recommendation to award contracts 
for RFP#ELCMDM2020‐05 (Curriculum Materials for Miami‐Dade and Monroe Counties), and authorize 

F. Reconciliation Snapshot 
G. Update on EFS Modernization 

H. EHS Credit Card Report   

i. June (no Charges) 

I. Slot Utilization 

i. Miami Dade County 
ii. Monroe County  
iii. Title V 

 
VII. Provider Services Committee Report            Rick Beasley 

 

A. Small World Montessori I, II, Preschool 

B. Charita M. Hunter Family Day Care Home 

C. Montessori Children's House of Miami Lakes 

 

VIII. Nominating Committee Report              Marisol Diaz 

 

A. Dr. Joycelyn Jones Lawrence – New Private Sector Member 

B. Loreen Chant – 2nd Term 

C. Matthew Bruno – 2nd Term 

 

IX. Strategic Planning Committee Report            Loreen Chant 

A. Strategic Planning Update 

 

X. 2020 Rising K Program 

 

A. Monroe County (Presentation at our Sept. BOD meeting)    Lisa Taylor 

B. Miami‐Dade County              Marisol Diaz 

 

XI. CEO Report                  Evelio Torres 

       

XII. Public Comments                Adrian Alfonso 

 

XIII. Adjourn                   Adrian Alfonso 
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Board of Directors Meeting 
June 1, 2020; 8:00 a.m. 

                                                                       Zoom Meeting; Meeting ID: 994 2719 6514 
             

 
Board Attendees:                               Adrian Alfonso; Rick Beasley; Matthew Bruno; Loreen Chant; Bob Eadie; Jenni 

Roig; Gilda Ferradaz; James Haj; Abilio Rodriguez; Judy Schaechter; Gerald Schwartz; 
Alex Soto; Iris Strachan; Aaron Slavens; Marisol Diaz; Sandi Bisceglia; Chuck Mohr; 
Francia Alexandre; Deena Hoagland;  

 
Board Absentees:  Maurice Kemp; Gladys Montes; Lisa Taylor;  
 
Staff Attendees:                                   Evelio Torres; Anabel Espinosa; Jackye Russell; Belkis Torres; Lisney Badillo; Ileana 

Vallejo;  Angelo  Parrino;  Sandra  Gonzalez;  Laurie  Dunn;  Lisa  Sanabria;  Fiorella 
Christie;  Michelle  Meilan;  Alex  Sanchez;  Lissandra  Curbelo;  Adelina  Gross;  Pam 
Hollingsworth; Ana Sejeck; Mercy Castiglione; Vanessa Aguilera; Fred Hicks; Diana 
Lane; Lucy Schrek; Ana Rodriguez  

 
General Attendees:                      Bob de la Fuente (Board Counsel); Dave Lawrence 
 
 

 
I. Welcome and Introductions                Adrian Alfonso 

 
 A. Alfonso called the meeting to order and welcomed everyone.  

 
 L. Sanabria called roll and a quorum was established with nineteen (19) voting members.  

 

 A. Alfonso thanked Board Member Sandi Bisceglia for her help in getting an article printed about the services 
the Coalition offers in Monroe County.  The article appeared in the Key West Citizen and the Free Press.   

 

 A. Alfonso stated that ELC staff held provider meetings via Zoom on 05/27/2020 to give them updates the 
mini grants, contracts, payments, etc. 
 

 A. Alfonso stated that ELC continues to distribute masks, gloves and disinfectant to providers. All providers, 
including those that are closed, will receive their allocation of supplies before they open. 

 

 A. Alfonso stated that the Strategic Planning Retreat is scheduled for August 3rd. Loreen Chant has accepted 
to Chair this committee again this year and asked for some board members to volunteer. 
 

 A. Alfonso stated that on May 16, the ELC held a second Virtual 2020 Early Childhood Conference ‐ Teaching 
is a Work of Heart for those providers that were not able to participate in the April 25th conference.  It was a 
successful event with more than 200 providers attending virtually.  
 



 
 
 
 

                  
 
 

 

 A. Alfonso stated that the annual Children’s Conference would be held on Sept. 12 via Zoom Meeting. The 
ELC continues to collaborate with Miami Dade College and the keynote speaker is Dr. Calvin Moore, Jr. 
 
 

II. Approval of Minutes                  Adrian Alfonso 
 

 A. Alfonso called for the approval of the meeting minutes from March 2020.  
 

o B. Eadie moved to approve the minutes.  
o A. Soto seconded the motion.  
o Motion passed unanimously.  

 
 

III. Executive Committee Report                Adrian Alfonso 
 
 A. Alfonso stated that the Executive Committee met In April and May to reviewed and approve the following 

items: 
 

o Audit Committee ‐ The OEL Fiscal Monitoring by Watson Rice was reviewed and there were no 
findings.  

o Governance & Bylaws Committee ‐ The following changes to our bylaws were reviewed and 
approved: 

o Section 1.1 – Address was changed from 5th floor to 2nd floor,  
o Section 5.3 – Optional Members was changed to Community at Large Member and the 

Coalition may appoint one. Early Head Policy Council Member shall be given priority,  
o Section 7.1 ‐ In the event of a Declaration of Emergency by the Governor or the Mayor of 

either Miami‐Dade or Monroe Counties, or any municipalities in Miami‐Dade or Monroe 
Counties, any and all meetings of the Executive Committee shall be deemed a meeting of the 
Board of Directors,  

o Section 8.1 ‐ Based on Coalition needs, the Executive Committee may act in place of the 
Coalition between Coalition meetings.  Meetings of the Executive Committee as the result of 
a State of Emergency declared by the Governor, Miami‐Dade County or Monroe County, or 
any municipalities located within Miami‐Dade or Monroe Counties, shall be deemed 
meetings of the Board of Directors for purposes of satisfying the required number of annual 
Board of Directors meetings.  Executive Committee action must be ratified by the Coalition at 
the next available Coalition meeting.  If the action is not ratified, it shall be deemed void. 
 
 Motion to approve changes to the bylaws by G. Schwartz. 
 Motion seconded by B. Eadie. 
 Motion unanimously passed. 

 
o Nominating Committee – Approval of the nomination of Francia Alexandre. Ms. Alexandre represents 

the Community at Large member/Early Head Start. 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

                  
 

 
 

o Motion to approve nomination by S. Bisceglia. 
o Motion seconded by J. Haj. 
o Motion unanimously passed. 

 
o The Early Head Start Annual Report was reviewed and approved.  

 
o Motion to approve EHS annual report by A. Rodriguez. 
o Motion seconded by J. Schaechter. 
o Motion unanimously passed. 

 
o Resolution 04062020‐01 ‐ Approval of the Evaluation Committee’s recommendation to award 

contracts for RFP#ELCMDM2020‐01 (Quality Materials for Miami‐Dade and Monroe Counties), and 
authorize the President and CEO to negotiate and execute contracts with the selected vendors. 

o Resolution 04062020‐02 ‐ Approval of the Evaluation Committee’s recommendation to award 
contracts for RFP#ELCMDM2020‐02 (Curriculum Materials for Miami‐Dade and Monroe Counties), 
and authorize the President and CEO to negotiate and execute contracts with the selected vendors. 

o Resolution 04062020‐03 ‐ Approval of the Evaluation Committee’s recommendation to award a 
contract for RFP#ELCMDM2020‐03 (Enterprise Network Support and Hosting Services), and authorize 
the President and CEO to negotiate and execute a contract with the selected vendor. 

o Resolution 04062020‐04 ‐ Approval of the Evaluation Committee’s recommendation to award a 
contract for RFP#ELCMDM2020‐04 (Provider Portal Hosting and Dashboard Services), and authorize 
the President and CEO to negotiate and execute a contract with the selected vendor. 

o Resolution 04062020‐05 ‐ Approval of the Evaluation Committee’s recommendation to award a 
contract for ITN#ELCMDM2020‐01 (Office Furniture), and authorize the President and CEO to 
negotiate and execute a contract with the selected vendor. 

o Resolution 04062020‐06 ‐ Approval of the Early Head Start budget and authorize the President and 
CEO to submit the Early Head Start budget as part of the 2020‐2021 grant application. 

o Resolution 04062020‐07 ‐ Authorize the President and CEO to submit the grant reapplication to the 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services for the Early Head Start Grant, in the amount of 
$10,211,307.00 for the 04HP000226 program Grant. 

o Resolution 04062020‐08 ‐ To authorize the President and CEO to submit a School Readiness Plan 
Amendment to the Office of Early Learning for approval to increase the rates paid to qualified 
providers. 

o Resolution 05042020‐01 ‐ Authorize the President and CEO to negotiate and execute the contracts 
listed within the background section of this resolution, adding all funding sources and shared services 
as allowed under funder’s guidelines. 

o Resolution 05042020‐02 ‐ Authorize the President and CEO to apply to, negotiate, execute and 
receive funds from the grantors listed in the background section of this resolution. 

o Resolution 05042020‐03 ‐ Authorize the President and CEO to approve the Initial Budget and approve 
the allocation and expenditure of funds for fiscal year 2020‐2021. 

o Resolution 05042020‐04 ‐ Authorize the President and CEO to submit supplemental applications and 
receive the Early Head Start funds for the Cost‐of‐Living Adjustment (COLA) and Quality 
Improvement (QI), as well as COVID‐19 Impact Supplement under the Coronavirus Aid Relief and 
Economic Security (C.A.R.E.S.) Act. 

 
 



 
 
 
 

                  
 
 
 

o Motion to approve resolutions as a block vote by B. Eadie. 
o Motion seconded by A. Soto.  
o Motion unanimously passed. 

 
 
IV. Finance Committee Report                Bob Eadie 

 
 B. Eadie stated that the Finance Committee met on May 28th and reviewed, and approved two resolutions: 

 

 Resolution 06012020‐01 Authorize the President and CEO to submit a School Readiness Plan Amendment 
to the Office of Early Learning for approval of new provider payment rates related to the provider rate 
increase approved by the Board of Directors. 

 

 Resolution 06012020‐02 Approve and authorize the President and CEO to submit the Anti‐Fraud Plan to 
the Office of Early Learning. 

 
o Motion to approve resolution in a block vote by B. Eadie. 
o Motion seconded by G. Ferradaz 
o Motion unanimously passed. 
 

 B. Eadie stated that it was business as usual. Budget Variance is reflecting a surplus in school readiness and 
they have contacted OEL to request childcare provider bonuses. The ELC has already spent over half a million 
in PPE’s and will purchase additional items in the upcoming months. B. Eadie stated that VPK is reflecting a 
slight surplus but this is in line with previous years and the Early Head Start Program is also showing a slight 
deficit. There are several steps that have been taken to address this and it is now tracking in the right 
direction. 
 

 B. Eadie stated that there were no charges on the EHS credit card report. The snapshots show that there is 
no waitlist in Miami‐Dade or Monroe County 

 

 B. Eadie stated that the reconciliation snapshot and stated that 72% of providers have been reviewed and 
completed.  
 
 

 
V. Provider Services Committee Report             Rick Beasley 

 

 R. Beasley stated that the Provider Services Committee met on March 26, April 30, and May 6 and reviewed 
the following cases: 

o Grace Christian Preparatory: liability insurance expired resulting in a gap of 8 months of no insurance. 
The provider claimed that they did have secondary insurance coverage. The committee decided to 
table the motion in order to allow the provider the opportunity to submit those documents. The case 
was subsequently dismissed. 

o Greater Love Primary Learning Center: the provider was on a Corrective Action Plan when their 
liability insurance expired resulting in a gap of over 30 days. After reviewing all documents and 



 
 
 
 

                  
 

hearing the provider’s testimony, the committee voted to place the provider on a six month 
Corrective Action Plan. 

o Learning Playhouse Academy – the provider submitted additional information to ELC staff and the 
case was dismissed  

o Garden of Light Academy: liability insurance expired resulting in a gap of 3 months.   After 
reviewing all documents and hearing the provider’s testimony, the committee voted to place the 
provider on a six month Corrective Action Plan. 

o Pequenos Exploradores Kidcare: received a class 1 violation, the provider allowed an unscreened 
individual to be in the room unsupervised with four children. After reviewing all documents and 
hearing the providers’ testimony, the committee, voted to place the provider on a one year 
Corrective Action Plan 

o Nora Cardona Large Family Childcare Home: liability insurance expired and due to the fact the 
childcare center was closed she did not renew.  After reviewing all documents and hearing the 
provider’s testimony, the committee, voted to place the provider on a three month Corrective Action 
Plan that will commence when the center reopens. 

o Choices Children’s Academy received three Class 1 violations within a 12‐month period. The 
violations consisted of, the maximum number of individuals transported in a vehicle may not exceed 
the manufacturer’s designated seating capacity or the number of factory installed seat belts. After 
reviewing all documents and hearing the providers’ testimony, the committee, voted to place the 
provider on a three month Corrective Action Plan that will commence when the center reopens. 

o On May 18, we held a Provider Services meeting so providers could discuss the issues they are 
currently facing. Topics discussed were provider enrollment, loss of learning gains and best practices 
for reopening. 

 
VI. CEO Report                  Evelio Torres 

 
https://www.elcmdm.org/Content/Uploads/elcmdm.org/files/Meeting%20Packages/CEO%20Report%2006012020%20fin
al.pdf 
VII. Public Comments                Adrian Alfonso 

 
VIII. Adjourn                  Adrian Alfonso     
   

 
 
 
 

                 



                                         

Name
July (No 

Meeting)
Aug. 5

Sept. 3 

Meeting was 

canceled

Oct. 7 

(Annual 

Meeting)

Nov. 4 

(Executive 

Committee)

Dec. 2
Jan (no 

meeting)

Feb. 

Executive 

Committee 

Meeting

Mar.  April 

May 

(Executive 

Committee 

Meeting)

June 

Absences

Alfonso, Adrian P P TP P TP P P 0

Alexandre, Francia P

Axford, Theresa TP 0

Beasley, Roderick E. P A P P P 1

Bisceglia, Sandi P

Bruno, Matthew A P P P P 1

Carruthers, Heather TP P P TP P 0

Chant, Loreen P P P P P 0

Diaz, Marisol P P P P P 0

Eadie, Robert P P P P TP P P 0

Ferradaz, Gilda P A TP A TP A P 3

Haj, James P P P P P 0

Hoagland, Deena P

Kemp, Maurice P A TP P A A A 4

Mohr, Chuck A

Montes, Gladys TP P P P P 0

Roig, Jenni P A P P P 0

Rodriguez, Abilio P P P P P 0

Schaechter, Judy P A P TP P 1

Soto, Alexander TP E TP TP P 0

Schwartz, Gerald K. P TP TP P P P 0

Slavens, Aaron P TP TP P TP P 0

Strachan, Iris   P TP P A P 1

Taylor, Lisa E 0

TOTAL  PRESENT 0 18 0 12 7 17 0 3 15 0 0 19

TOTAL EXCUSED 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

TOTAL ABSENT 0 1 0 5 0 1 0 1 3 0 0 2

Legend

P= Present

TP= Telephone

A= Absent

E= Excused
Rep= Representative  on behalf of

revised 6.26.17 
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Action Requested: Authorize the President and CEO to execute an Addendum to Grant 

Agreement 2018-2019 shown in the background section of this resolution.  

 

Fiscal Impact:  None. 

 

Funding Source: Florida Department of Education Office of Early Learning. 

 

Strategic Goal:    Neediest Children     Providers 

    Youngest Children     Internal Capacity 

    Educate All      Funding     

  

══════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════ 

RESOLUTION: 06292020-01 

 

AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT AND CEO TO EXECUTE AN ADDENDUM TO GRANT AGREEMENT 

2018-2019 SHOWN IN THE BACKGROUND SECTION OF THIS RESOLUTION.  

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee of the Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, 

Inc. has been apprised of the program goals through the attached narrative, hereby incorporated 

by reference; 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee approves the adoption of this action; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Executive Committee shall authorize the President and 

CEO to execute an Addendum to Grant Agreement 2018-2019 shown in the background section of 

this resolution.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Early Learning Coalition Executive Committee Meeting  

 

June 29, 2020 

 

Resolution: 06292020-01 



 

 

 

 

The foregoing resolution and attachment was offered by ___________, who moved its approval.  The 

motion was seconded by ___________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

_______________________. 

 

The vote was recorded as listed in the attached roll sheet. 

 

The chairperson thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted this 29
th

 day of June, 

2020. 

  

 

EARLY LEARNING COALITION 

OF MIAMI-DADE/MONROE, INC, 

 

 

By: ___________________________ 

Executive Committee Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Background: 

   

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

  

 

Action Requested: Authorize the President and CEO to release a Request for Proposal (RFP) 

for Curriculum Materials for Miami-Dade and Monroe Counties.   
 

Fiscal Impact:  A total amount not to exceed $5,000,000.00 per fiscal year, which is subject to 

the availability of funding. 

 

Funding Source: APOOL* 

 

Strategic Goal:    Neediest Children     Providers 

    Youngest Children     Internal Capacity 

    Educate All      Funding     

  

══════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════ 

RESOLUTION: 06292020-02 

 

AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT AND CEO TO RELEASE A REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) FOR 

CURRICULUM MATERIALS FOR MIAMI-DADE AND MONROE COUNTIES.   

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee of the Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, 

Inc. has been apprised of the program goals through the attached narrative, hereby incorporated 

by reference; 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee approves the adoption of this action; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Executive Committee shall authorize the President and 

CEO to release a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Curriculum Materials for Miami-Dade and Monroe 

Counties.   

 

 

 

 

*APOOL (Specific Funding Sources): Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, 

Florida Department of Children and Families, Department of Education Office of Early Learning Miami-Dade and Monroe 

(School Readiness Services, Voluntary Prekindergarten Services), Ocean Reef Community Foundation, Monroe County School 

District, Teen Parent Program, The Children’s Trust. 

 

 

Early Learning Coalition Executive Committee Meeting  

 

June 29, 2020 

 

Resolution: 06292020-02 



 

 

 

 

The foregoing resolution and attachment was offered by ___________, who moved its approval.  The 

motion was seconded by ___________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

_______________________. 

 

The vote was recorded as listed in the attached roll sheet. 

 

The chairperson thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted this 29
th

 day of June, 

2020. 

  

 

EARLY LEARNING COALITION 

OF MIAMI-DADE/MONROE, INC, 

 

 

By: ___________________________ 

Executive Committee Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Background: 

High-quality early education produces long-lasting benefits for young children.  The Early Learning 

Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc. (the Coalition) recognizes that the implementation of a 

developmentally appropriate curriculum is the fundamental building block of a high-quality 

program that improves the school readiness skills of all children.  A curriculum includes the 

objectives for the knowledge and skills to be gained by children and the implementation strategies 

for learning experiences facilitated by informed parents and educators. 

 

The Coalition intends to provide curricula materials and training to support early learning programs 

in the implementation of a Florida Office of Early Learning approved curriculum that improves the 

quality of learning experiences for young children. A Request for Proposal (RFP) is needed to secure 

one or multiple vendors to provide quality curricula materials and training from an approved list 

of vendors. Curricula materials, training and enhancements include but are not limited to 

manipulatives, manuals/guides, books, compacts discs, digital video discs, assessments, content 

expert lecturer, and other developmentally appropriate materials and/or enhancements.   

 

For several years, the Coalition has utilized multiple vendors for the following: Professional 

Development Institute, Quality Counts, Early Head Start Child Care Partnerships, and other quality 

initiatives.  

 

The following table illustrates the Request for Proposals and the proposed release dates: 

 

RFP Services Proposed Dollar Not-

To-Exceed Amount 

Proposed Release 

Date 

Proposed Contract 

Date 

Curricula Materials, 

Training, and 

Enhancements 

$5,000,000.00 June 2020 September 2020 

Total RFP amount 

for 2020-2021 

$5,000,000.00  

 

 



 

 

  

 

Action Requested: To approve the Early Learning Coalition’s Amendment to the Annual 

Budget for fiscal year 2019-2020. 

 

Fiscal Impact: Net decrease of $4,234,075.00 to the Initial Budget. 

 

Funding Source: Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and 

Families, Florida Department of Children and Families, Department of Education Office of 

Early Learning Miami-Dade and Monroe (School Readiness Services, Voluntary 

Prekindergarten Services), Save the Children Federation, Inc., University of Florida, Lastinger 

Center for Learning, Ocean Reef Community Foundation, The School Board of Miami-Dade 

County, Florida, Teenage Parent Program, Monroe County School District, Teen Parent 

Program, The Children’s Trust. 

 

Strategic Goal:    Neediest Children     Providers 

    Youngest Children     Internal Capacity 

    Educate All      Funding     

  

══════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════ 

RESOLUTION: 06292020-03 

 

TO APPROVE THE EARLY LEARNING COALITION’S AMENDMENT TO THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020. 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee of the Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, 

Inc. has been apprised of the program goals through the attached narrative, hereby incorporated 

by reference; 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee approves the adoption of this action; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Executive Committee shall approve the Early 

Learning Coalition’s Amendment to the Annual Budget for fiscal year 2019-2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Early Learning Coalition Executive Committee Meeting  

 

June 29, 2020 

 

Resolution: 06292020-03 



 

 

 

 

The foregoing resolution and attachment was offered by ___________, who moved its approval.  The 

motion was seconded by ___________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

_______________________. 

 

The vote was recorded as listed in the attached roll sheet. 

 

The chairperson thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted this 29
th

 day of June, 

2020. 

  

 

EARLY LEARNING COALITION 

OF MIAMI-DADE/MONROE, INC, 

 

 

By: ___________________________ 

Executive Committee Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Background: 

The Early Learning Coalition’s fiscal year began July 1, 2019.  Please see the amendment to the 

approved Initial budget for fiscal year 2019-2020 below: 

  

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

School Readiness (SR)
 Voluntary Prekindergarten 

Education Program (VPK) 
Early Head Start

The 

Children's 

Trust

Other Total:

Descriptions:

6/12/2020 $135,425,416 $54,487,176 $10,211,307 $13,230,000 $1,882,140 $215,236,039

Additional Revenue: School Readiness Parent Fees $1.7 million,  

Mini Grants $1.6 million and  Cares Act $3.9 million                                                                        

Deobligation: Voluntary Prekindergarten Education ($1.5) million

6/1/2020 $128,159,491 $55,987,176 $10,211,307 $13,230,000 $1,882,140 $209,470,114 Deobligation: $10 million

9/30/2019 $138,159,491 $55,987,176 $10,211,307 $13,230,000 $1,882,140 $219,470,114

Additional Revenue compared to Projected Budget:  School 

Readiness $19.7 million,  Early Head Start $422,000.00.                                           

Decrease compared to Projected Budget:  The Children's Trust 

$650,000.00,   Voluntary PreKindergarten Education $951,000.00.

6/3/2019 $118,543,799 $58,657,659 $9,789,273 $13,880,000 $2,833,449 $203,704,180
Projected Initial Budget for 2019-2020 due to pending Notice of 

Award
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc. 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Early Learning Coalition of 
Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc. (the “Organization”) (a Florida nonprofit organization), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of 
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to 
the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 
The Organization has recorded a Due from Providers in the amount of $25,400,000 with respect 
to overpayments made to such providers, along with a corresponding payable to the Office of 
Early Learning (OEL) for $25,400,000. As indicated in Note 6, the Organization is in the process 
of reconciling these provider payments as of June 30, 2019. Should the Organization be unable 
to collect in whole or in part on the amount due from the providers, OEL will assume all risk and 
the Organization will not incur a loss.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 
Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial 
assistance, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and 
Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General, is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report, dated June 
19, 2020, on our consideration of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant 
agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not 
to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Coral Gables, Florida 
June 19, 2020 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF MIAMI-DADE/MONROE, INC. 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2019 
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Cash and cash equivalents 13,984,658$       
Grants receivable 6,379,007           
Furniture and equipment, net 357,438              
Other assets 65,349                
Due from Providers 25,400,000         

TOTAL ASSETS 46,186,452$       

 LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 18,411,667$       
Other liabilities 1,258,144           
Due to Office of Early Learning 25,400,000         

TOTAL LIABILITIES 45,069,811         

 NET ASSETS
Without Donor Restriction 1,116,641           

      TOTAL NET ASSETS 1,116,641           

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 46,186,452$       

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF MIAMI-DADE/MONROE, INC. 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
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SUPPORT AND REVENUES
Grants (federal, state, and local) 189,782,053$    
The Children's Trust 7,813,970          
Contributions and other 174,807             

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 197,770,830      

EXPENSES:
Early education services 190,884,835      
Management and general 6,853,299          

TOTAL EXPENSES 197,738,134      

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 32,696               

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,083,945          

NET  ASSETS, END OF YEAR 1,116,641$        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF MIAMI-DADE/MONROE, INC. 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
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Early
Education Management
Service and General Total

Dues and subscriptions 4,301$               69,441$         73,742$             
Enhancement projects 11,505,828 510,483 12,016,311 
Educational materials 1,269,404 128,612 1,398,016 
(Quality Initiatives)
Equipment repairs and maintenance 1,377 5,725 7,102 
Insurance 96,676 7,691 104,367 
Meetings and conferences 30,904 12,979 43,883 
Occupancy costs 1,477,097          211,428 1,688,525 
Office 161,100             394,277 555,377 
Other 1,345,442          - 1,345,442
Postage and freight 21,336 27,045 48,381
Printing 84,371 18,801 103,172
Professional fees 182,001             752,384 934,385 
Salaries and benefits 15,129,663        4,298,560 19,428,223 
Direct child care 157,422,811 - 157,422,811
Sub-recipient contracts 1,459,355          24,166 1,483,521 
Telephone 321,087             174,187 495,274 
Travel and training 368,665             107,045 475,710 

TOTAL EXPENSES
BEFORE DEPRECIATION 190,881,418 6,742,824 197,624,242 

DEPRECIATION 3,417 110,475 113,892             
TOTAL EXPENSES 190,884,835$    6,853,299$    197,738,134$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF MIAMI-DADE/MONROE, INC. 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets 32,696$             

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation 113,892             
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Grants receivable 6,099,528          
Other assets (19,519)              
Accounts payable 4,246,230          

 
                         

Other liabilities 328,474             

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 10,768,605        

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 10,801,301        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of furniture and equipment (185,754)            

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (185,754)            

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 10,615,547        

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,369,111          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 13,984,658$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF MIAMI-DADE/MONROE, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

7 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION 
Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc. f/k/a Miami-Dade School Readiness Coalition, Inc. (the 
“Organization”) was incorporated under the laws of the State of Florida on April 12, 2000, following the 
enactment of Florida State Statute 411.01 that established the Florida Partnership for School Readiness (the 
“Partnership”). The Organization has been entrusted to implement the Voluntary Pre-kindergarten (“VPK”) 
program in accordance with the laws, rules and regulations of the State of Florida particularly the Voluntary 
Pre-kindergarten Education Program Act, Chapter 1002, Part V, Florida Statutes. This program is designed to 
prepare all 4-year olds for kindergarten and build the foundation for future educational success. 

The Organization’s mission is to promote school readiness and voluntary pre-kindergarten programs, thus 
increasing the probability for all children of achieving future educational success and becoming productive 
members of society. The Organization seeks to further the physical, social, emotional, and intellectual needs of 
Miami-Dade and Monroe County children beginning before birth through age five. 

Substantially, all of the Organization’s support and revenue was received from a contract with the Partnership. 
The contract provides for a comprehensive program of readiness and services that enhances the cognitive, 
social, and physical development of children in order to achieve performance standards and outcome measures 
established by the Partnership. The Organization provides school readiness services to every eligible family, to 
the extent that funding resources are available. The Organization receives additional support and revenue from 
grants and donations from other sources. 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
New Accounting Pronouncement 
The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, 
Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The 
Organization has adjusted the presentation of its financial statements accordingly, applying the changes 
retrospectively to the comparative period presented. The new standard changes the following aspects of the 
Organization’s financial statements: 

• The temporarily restricted and permanently restricted net asset classes have been combined into a single
net asset class called net assets with donor restrictions.

• The unrestricted net asset class has been renamed net assets without donor restrictions.
• The financial statements include a new disclosure about liquidity and availability of resources.

Basis of Accounting 
The Organization prepares its financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting. Accounting standards 
establish external financial reporting standards for not-for-profit organizations, which include four basic 
financial statements:  the statement of financial position, the statement of activities, the statement of functional 
expenses, and the statement of cash flows. Accounting standards require that resources be classified for 
accounting and reporting purposes into the following two separate classes of net assets according to externally 
imposed restrictions: 



EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF MIAMI-DADE/MONROE, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
Basis of Accounting (Continued) 

• Net assets without donor restrictions: The portion of the net assets of the Organization that can be used
subject only to the broad limits resulting from the nature of the Organization, the environment in which
it operates, and the purposes specified in its articles of incorporation or bylaws. In some cases, the use of
these resources is also subject to limits resulting from contractual agreements entered into by the
Organizations with suppliers, creditors, and others in the course of its business. The Organization has the
greatest ability to choose when using these resources.
Net assets without donor restrictions generally result from grant revenues, contributions and support that
are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions reduced by expenses incurred in providing services, raising
contributions, and performing administrative functions.

• Net assets with donor restrictions: The portion of the net assets of the Organization that is subject to
either donor imposed time restrictions or donor-imposed purpose restrictions. These restrictions limit the
Organization’s choices when using these resources because the Organization has a fiduciary
responsibility to its donors to follow the donor’s instructions. Net assets with donor restrictions
generally result from donor-restricted contributions.

Management Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures including, but not limited to, the determination 
of the net realizable value of receivables and the useful lives of donated and acquired assets. Accordingly, 
actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Concentration  
The Organization places its cash deposits with creditworthy, high-quality institutions. At times, cash balances 
may temporarily exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Coverage (“FDIC”) limit of $250,000.  

The Organization has $1,116,641 in net assets as of June 30, 2019. Substantially, all of the Organization’s 
support was provided by the Federal government and the State of Florida under early childhood education and 
voluntary pre-kindergarten programs. A significant reduction in this level of support, if this were to occur, 
would have an adverse effect on the Organization’s programs and activities and its ability to satisfy its financial 
and program obligations and commitments. However, the payable obligations under the subcontracted service 
provider arrangements are only payable from the Organization upon support provided from the Federal 
government and the State of Florida. To the extent the subcontracted payment arrangements will not be 
forthcoming, the Organization will not be obligated. The Organization’s risk is limited to the support received 
from the federal and state grants. 



EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF MIAMI-DADE/MONROE, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
The fair value of financial instruments is determined by reference to various market data and other valuation 
techniques, as appropriate. Unless otherwise disclosed, the fair value of financial instruments, including cash 
and cash equivalents, grants receivable, accounts payable, deferred revenues and other liabilities, approximates 
their recorded values due primarily to the short-term nature of their maturities.  

Reclassifications 
Certain reclassifications were made to the prior year to conform to the current year presentation. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The Organization considers all highly-liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash 
equivalents. 

Furniture and Equipment, Net 
Furniture and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition. Major betterments and additions are 
capitalized, while replacements, maintenance, and repairs which do not improve or extend the lives of the 
respective assets are charged to expense as incurred. Donated furniture and equipment are recorded at their fair 
market value at the date of donation. Upon retirement or disposal of assets, the cost and accumulated 
depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is included in revenues or expenses. 
Depreciation is computed using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which 
generally range from 3 to 5 years. 

Income Taxes 
The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
Accordingly, no provision for federal or state income taxes has been made in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

The Organization recognizes and measures tax positions taken or expected to be taken in its tax return based on 
their technical merit and assesses the likelihood that the positions will be sustained upon examination based on 
the facts, circumstances, and information available at the end of each period. Interest and penalties on tax 
liabilities, if any, would be recorded in interest expense and other non-interest expense, respectively. 

The U.S. Federal jurisdiction and Florida are the major tax jurisdictions where the Organization files tax 
returns. The Organization is generally no longer subject to U.S. Federal or State examinations by tax authorities 
for years before 2016. 

Support and Revenue 
The Organization’s principal source of revenue is derived from federal and state grants. Grant revenues are 
recognized based on the incurrence of allowable costs for cost reimbursement awards. Contributions are 
recognized upon receipt, unless accompanied by restrictions or conditions. Based on the Organization’s 
experience with the grantors, management has determined that the related grants receivable are fully collectible. 
Consequently, no allowance for doubtful accounts is included in the accompanying financial statements. 

Grants and other revenues where the donor-imposed restrictions are met in the same reporting period in which 
the revenue is recognized are reported as without donor restricted support. 
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
Allocation of Functional Expenses 
Program expenses and management and general expenses have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
Statements of Activities and in the Statements of Functional Expenses. Directly identifiable expenses are 
charged to programs and supporting services. Management and general expenses include those expenses that 
are not directly identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall support and direction of 
the Organization. 

Subsequent Events 
The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through June 19, 2020, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. See Notes 6, 7 and 11.  

NOTE 3 - FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT, NET 
Furniture and equipment is comprised of the following as of June 30, 2019: 

2019

Office equipment 1,683,874$      
Furniture and fixtures 153,305           

1,837,179 

Less: accumulated depreciation (1,479,741)       

357,438$         

Pursuant to the contract with the Partnership, upon termination of the contract the Partnership retains title to all 
furniture and equipment purchased with funds provided by the Partnership. Accordingly, these assets are 
recorded as net assets with donor restriction and are reported under the caption “School Readiness Services.”   

Depreciation expense was $113,892 for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
Accounts payable consist of the following at June 30, 2019: 

Child Development 12,606,984$    
Other 5,804,683        

18,411,667$    
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NOTE 5 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
Operating Leases 
The Organization leases its Miami-Dade and Monroe County facilities under noncancelable operating leases 
expiring in at various dates through June 2029. Additionally, the Organization leases copiers. Future minimum 
payments under these leases are as follows: 

673,010$         
400,319 
383,334 
299,914 

1,631,890 

3,388,467$      

Fiscal year June 30:

Thereafter
2023
2022
2021
2020

Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2019 was $1,188,343. 

Other 
The Organization participates in a number of federal and state grants assistance programs. Amounts received or 
receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and compliance testing by those agencies to determine if 
activities undertaken by the Organization comply with the conditions of the grant. Any disallowed amounts may 
constitute a liability to the Organization. Management believes that no material liability will arise from any such 
audits. 

Litigation 
The Organization is exposed to various asserted and unasserted potential claims encountered in the normal 
course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will not have a material effect 
on the Organization’s financial position or results of operations. 

NOTE 6 –OFFICE OF EARLY LEARNING - EFS SYSTEM 
The Office of Early Learnings (“OEL”) has experienced difficulties in the implementation and functionality of 
its client and data management system, EFS MOD. OEL is currently in the process of updating their electronic 
filing data systems, specifically data migration and the School Readiness attendance modules. 

In order to assure that the children of Miami-Dade and Monroe would continue to be served and that providers 
were paid timely, OEL instructed the Organization to make estimated payments throughout fiscal year 2019. 
The Organization has been reconciling the provider payments for the fiscal year, but it has proven to be a 
tedious process. Subsequent to year-end, the Organization reconciled 93% of provider payments. Based on the 
results obtained from those reconciliations, OEL and the Organization believe that the net overpayment to 
providers as a result of making estimated payments, may be approximately $25,400,000. OEL is fully aware of 
these overpayments. At June 30, 2019, the overpayments to the providers of $25,400,000 have been recorded as 
Due from Providers, and a liability to OEL has been recorded for the same amount. In the event that the 
providers do not pay in full or in part, the Organization will not be liable to the OEL and the Organization will 
not incur any loss.  
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NOTE 7 – RETIREMENT PLAN 
The Organization has a retirement plan available for eligible employees in which the Organization matches 
employee contributions. During the year ended 2019, the Organization revised the calculation of amounts 
matched and recorded an adjustment of approximately $235,000 to reflect amounts owed under the retirement 
plan. Subsequent to year-end, another adjustment was required (see Note 11). All adjustments are funded by 
OEL and, accordingly, do not negatively impact the Organization.  

NOTE 8 – NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
As of June 30, 2019, the Organization does not have net assets with donor restrictions. 

NOTE 9 – LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 
The Organization monitors its liquidity so that it is able to meet its operating needs and other contractual 
commitments while maximizing the investment of its excess operating cash. The Organization has the following 
financial assets that could be readily made available within one year of the balance sheet to fund expenses 
without limitations: 

Cash and cash equivalents 13,984,658$    
Grants receivable 6,379,007        

20,363,665$    
  Financial Assets available to meet cash needs 

for operating expenses within one year:

NOTE 10 – ASU 2016-14 
The implementation of ASU 2016-14 required the following changes to net assets at July 31, 2018. 

After
As Originally Adoption of

Net Asset Class Presented ASU 2016-14
Unrestricted net assets 1,083,945$     -$                
Temporarily restricted net asets - - 
Permanently restricted net assets - - 
Net assets without donor restrictions - 1,083,945 
Net assets with donor restrictions - -
Total net assets 1,083,945$     1,083,945$     
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NOTE 11 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
As indicated in Note 6, the Organization has reconciled 93% of provider payments in order to determine 
whether the amount of $25,400,000 is due from the providers.  

In addition, as indicated in Note 7, an adjustment was required and recorded to fund the Organization’s 
retirement plan. Subsequent to year-end, another adjustment was required to fund the retirement plan for the 
following fiscal year end. The amount of this additional funding is approximately $257,000. Such amount will 
be paid by to the Office of Early Learning (OEL) to the Organization and accordingly will not result in a 
negative impact to the Organization.  

Finally, the effect of the COVID-19 virus has been felt worldwide and has caused economic disruption. While 
the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is considerable uncertainty around the duration. 
Therefore, it is too early to predict or reasonably estimate the effect of any operational, funding, or contribution 
delays as a result of the virus.  



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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Federal/State Agency CFDA/ CFSA Total
Federal Cluster/ Program/ State Project, Pass-through Entity Number Number   Expenditures
FEDERAL AWARDS:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Program:
 Passed Through Florida's Office of Early Learning 93.558 SR199 41,336,773$          

    Child Care Development Fund (CCDF) Cluster:
         CCDF Block Grant

 Passed Through Florida's Office of Early Learning 93.575 SR199 47,586,838            
         CCDF - Mandatory Matching

 Passed Through Florida's Office of Early Learning 93.596 SR199 32,787,238            
CCDF Cluster Total 80,374,076            

    Social Services Block Grant
 Passed Through Florida's Office of Early Learning 93.667 SR199 11,841 

11,841 
Head Start Program:

Passed through Administration for Children and Families/ Office of             
Head Start 93.600 04HP0007-03-02 12,442,622            

12,442,622            
   Refugee and Entrant Assistance - State Administered Programs:

Passed through Department of Children and Families: 93.566 XK047 231,103 
231,103 

   Refugee and Entrant Assistance - Discretionary Grants
Passed through Department of Children and Families: 93.576 XK047 469,210 

469,210 
   PPHF: Early Childcare and Education Obesity Prevention Program - 
   Obesity Prevention in Young Children - financed solely by Public
   Prevention and Health Funds

  Passed through Nemours Foundation 93.742 8609310006-ELCM-01 100,237 
100,237 

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 134,965,862          
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 134,965,862$        
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Federal/ State Agency
Federal Cluster/ Program/ State Project, CFDA/ CFSA

Conract/
Grant

Pass-through Entity Number Number   Expenditures

STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE:

Florida Department of Education and Commissioner of
Education

Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Education Program:
Passed Through Florida's Office of Early Learning 48.108 SV199 54,645,630$          
Passed Through Florida's Office of Early Learning 48.108 OA199 106,126 
Passed through University of Florida 48.108 N/A 87,095 

Program Total 54,838,851            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 54,838,851$          

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 189,804,713$        
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1. GENERAL

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance included herein represent 
all of the Federal Awards and State projects of the Organization during the year ended June 30, 2019. 

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance is 
presented using the accrual basis of accounting and includes expenses incurred by the Organization during 
the year ended June 30, 2019. 

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance includes 
the federal and state grant activity of the Organization during its fiscal year July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019. 
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida.  Therefore, some 
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the 
basic financial statements. 

4. INDIRECT COST RATE

The Early Learning Coalition has elected not to use the de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the 
Uniform Guidance during the years ended June 30, 2019. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL  
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND  
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors 
 Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc. 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc. ( the “Organization”) (a 
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, 
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
June 19, 2020. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the 
Organization’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we 
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs as item 2019-001 that we consider to be significant deficiencies.   

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs as item 2019-001. 

Organization’s Response to Findings 

The Organization’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Organization’s response was not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Coral Gables, Florida 
June 19, 2020 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE  
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND 
CHAPTER 10.650, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL  

To the Board of Directors 
Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc. 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and State Project 

We have audited Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc.’s (the “Organization”) 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance 
Supplement, and the requirements described in the Department of Financial Services’ State 
Projects Compliance Supplement, that could have a direct and material effect on each of the 
Organization’s major federal programs and state projects for the year ended June 30, 2019. The 
Organization’s major federal programs and state projects are identified in the summary of 
auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grants applicable to its federal programs and state projects. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Organization’s major 
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the 
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) 
and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program or state project occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the Center’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program and state project. However, our audit does not provide a legal 
determination of the Organization’s compliance. 
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Basis for Qualified Opinion on CFDA 93.575 / 93.596 Child Care Development (CCDF) 
Cluster and CFDA 93.558 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the Organization 
did not comply with requirements regarding the following:  

Finding # CFDA/CSFA # Program (or Cluster) Name Compliance Requirement 

2019-001 93.575/93.596 

93.558 

Child Care Development (CCDF) Cluster 

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 

Activities Allowed or 
Unallowed/ Allowable 
Costs/Cost Principles, and 
Eligibility 

Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the Organization to comply 
with the requirements applicable to that program. 

Qualified Opinion on CFDA 93.575 / 93.596 Child Care Development (CCDF) Cluster and 
CFDA 93.558 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families  

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” 
paragraph, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on CFDA 93.575 / 
93.596 Child Care Development (CCDF) Cluster and CFDA 93.558 Temporary Assistance for 
Needy Families for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Unmodified Opinion on the Major State Project and Other Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major state 
project (CSFA 48.108) and other major federal program (CFDA 93.600 Head Start) identified in 
the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are required 
to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.650, Rules of the 
Auditor General and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as item 2019-001. Our opinion on each major federal program has been 
modified with respect to these matters. 

The Organization’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Organization’s response was 
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on the response. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization’s internal 
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Organization’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance, as described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2019-001 that we consider 
to be significant deficiencies. 

The Organization’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our 
audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The 
Organization’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Coral Gables, Florida 
June 19, 2020  

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor’s report issued:       Unmodified 

  Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified?  Yes             X    No 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
considered to be a material weakness(es)?   X    Yes             No 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?   X    Yes             No 

Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 

   Internal control over major federal programs and state    
projects: 

Material weakness(es) identified?  Yes             X    No 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
considered to be a material weakness(es)?   X    Yes             No 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for 
major programs       Qualified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance or 
Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General?   X    Yes             No 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA/CFSA Number Name of Federal/State Program or Cluster 

93.575, 93.596 Child Care Development Fund (CCDF) Cluster 
 93.558 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families  
93.600 Head Start 
48.108 VPK State General Funds 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 
$   3,000,000 Federal 
$   1,645,166 State 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?  X     Yes _____ No 
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SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS  

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS  

See Finding 2019-001 below.  

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS  

None 

SECTION III – FEDERAL PROGRAM AND STATE PROJECTS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES  
2019-001 – Activities Allowed or Unallowed and Allowable Costs/Cost Principles and Eligibility - 
(Significant Deficiency / Noncompliance)   

Programs: Child Care Development Fund Cluster – CFDA# 93.575 93.596 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families – CFDA# 93.558 

Criteria: In accordance with the contracts, the Organization is required to comply with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws regarding activities allowed and/or 
allowable cost and eligibility of the programs. 

Conditions:  Challenges with the Florida Department of Education’s (DOE) new data system 
that the Organization is contractually required to utilize created a number of 
operational and data integrity issues. The system was released before all 
functions required by the organization to properly operate were functional.  The 
data was inaccurate due to data migration issues when DOE migrated from the 
old legacy system to the new system. This has caused significant challenges for 
all the entities relying on the system’s controls and process to adequately 
determine supported payments to providers. In addition, while the Organization 
has continued to perform the eligibility functions required by the granting 
agencies in order to determine whether a child was eligible for service and has 
retained the necessary documentation for each child as required, the 
Organization did not utilize the eligibility information or criteria in determining 
the amount actually due or paid to the provider. Instead, the Organization made 
estimated payments to all providers as required to do so by the DOE. The DOE 
is currently in the process of updating and correcting the system so that 
payments made to providers are accurately supported. 

Cause: The Organization was unable to extract many management reports and those that 
were extracted were inaccurate. This not only included management reports 
needed to properly project and pay expenditures or adjust expenditures based on 
eligibility criteria, but also reports needed by providers to reconcile the 
payments made by the organization. As the result, the organization was directed 
by the DOE to pay providers based on estimates instead of the usual practice of 
paying providers based on actual attendance or changes in eligibility criteria 
which can fluctuate monthly based on the number of eligible families and 
children enrolled.      
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SECTION III – FEDERAL PROGRAM AND STATE PROJECTS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
(Continued) 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
2019-001 – Activities Allowed or Unallowed and Allowable Costs/Cost Principles and Eligibility - 
(Significant Deficiency / Noncompliance) 
(Continued) 

Effect: Due to the volume of transactions processed by the organization and the number 
of providers under contract, a manual reconciliation system was not practical.  
Additionally, the organization was not able to fully begin the reconciliation 
process and had to stop several times because the data changed with every 
enhanced version of the data system. Every time the data changed, the 
reconciliation process had to start from inception. As a result, adequately 
demonstrating that program expenditures are accurate and complete was not a 
possibility. The organization requested support from the DOE and a team of 
DOE representatives provided this support in person in Miami on February 17 – 
21, 2020.  After a discussion that included inviting a number of providers to be 
part of the reconciliation process for their programs, a plan was developed with 
the DOE on how to best approach the reconciliation process, considering the 
volume, workload, and timeframe.    

Recommendation: Due to the inability to rely on the new DOE system, the Organization should 
reconcile each provider on a monthly basis and remit payment based on those 
reconciliations. If impractical, a plan should be in place, in coordination with the 
DOE, in the event that there is a similar problem with this system in the future. As 
of the date of these financial statements, the Organization had reconciled 54% of 
all provider payments.  

Views of Responsible Refer to pages 25-26. 
Officials and Planned  
Corrective Action: 

Questioned Costs 
As explained in Note 6 to the financial statements, OEL and the Organization believe that the net overpayment 
to providers as a result of making estimated payments may be approximately $25,400,000.   
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Action Requested: Authorize the President and CEO to submit a request to and seek approval 

from, the Office of Head Start Region IV to modify the provision of services by allowing the 

Early Head Start program to offer a home-based option. 
 

Fiscal Impact:  None. 

 

Funding Source: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children 

and Families. 

 

Strategic Goal:    Neediest Children     Providers 

    Youngest Children     Internal Capacity 

    Educate All      Funding     

  

══════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════ 

RESOLUTION: 08032020-01 

 

AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT AND CEO TO SUBMIT A REQUEST TO AND SEEK APPROVAL FROM, 

THE OFFICE OF HEAD START REGION IV TO MODIFY THE PROVISION OF SERVICES BY 

ALLOWING THE EARLY HEAD START PROGRAM TO OFFER A HOME-BASED OPTION. 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of the Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc. (the 

“Board”) has been apprised of the program goals through the attached narrative, hereby 

incorporated by reference and the Finance Committee is in agreement with the goals described 

therein; 

 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee recommends approving this action and has presented 

said action to the Board for adoption and approval; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board approves the adoption of this action; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board to authorize the President and CEO to submit 

a request to and seek approval from, the Office of Head Start Region IV to modify the provision of 

services by allowing the Early Head Start program to offer a home-based option. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Early Learning Coalition Board of Directors Meeting  

 

August 3, 2020 

 

Resolution: 08032020-01 



 

 

 

The foregoing resolution and attachment was offered by ___________, who moved its approval.  The 

motion was seconded by ___________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

_______________________. 

 

The vote was recorded as listed in the attached roll sheet. 

 

The chairperson thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted this 3
rd

 day of August, 

2020. 

  

 

EARLY LEARNING COALITION 

OF MIAMI-DADE/MONROE, INC, 

 

 

By: ___________________________ 

Board Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Background: 

On May 1, 2019 the Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc. (ELC) Early Head Start 

program submitted the baseline grant application for a five-year project period (August 1, 2019 – 

July 31, 2024) to the Office of Head Start Region IV.  The grant application specified services being 

delivered through a center-based option. 

 

On March 18, 2020 the nation began to experience closure due to a world-wide pandemic.  During 

the subsequent 2½ weeks (by March 30, 2020), a total of 71% of the Early Head Start centers closed 

their doors and began offering services virtually.  Approximately, 26% of the centers remained 

closed for 1 month, another 26% remained closed for at least two months, and 19% remained 

closed for three or more months. The closure has had a tremendous financial impact on childcare 

businesses.  As centers start to reopen, the average attendance has been about half the number 

of children enrolled in the center, with the lowest being 12%.  It can be assumed that private pay 

attendance has been similar or lower.  Without all of the expected revenues, childcare centers may 

experience financial hardship which in worst case scenario may force an owner out of business.   

 

The Early Head Start program is proposing to modify the delivery of services by offering owners 

the option to stay in business through a home-based option with Early Head Start.  The home-

based option delivers the full range of comprehensive services consistent with the Head Start 

Program Performance Standards through visits with the child’s parents, primarily in the child’s 

home and through group socializations opportunities in a classroom. This would reduce overhead 

costs, such as rent and utilities, while still continuing to offer Early Head Start services to families, 

and ensuring continuity of care and primary caregiving between teachers and children remain 

uninterrupted.  

 

In order to submit a request to the Office of Head Start Region IV to modify the provision of services 

by allowing the Early Head Start program to offer a home-based option, Board approval is required.  

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

  

 

Action Requested: Authorize the President and CEO to release a Request for Proposal for 

Professional Development Resources for Positive Adult/Child Interactions for Miami-Dade 

and Monroe Counties.   
 

Fiscal Impact:  An approximate amount of $135,000.00 per fiscal year, which is subject to the 

availability of funding. 

 

Funding Source: U.S Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children 

and Families, Department of Education Office of Early Learning Miami-Dade and Monroe 

(School Readiness Services, Voluntary Prekindergarten Services), and The Children’s Trust.    

 

Strategic Goal:    Neediest Children     Providers 

    Youngest Children     Internal Capacity 

    Educate All      Funding     

  

══════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════ 

RESOLUTION: 08032020-02 

 

AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT AND CEO TO RELEASE A REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR 

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT RESOURCES FOR POSITIVE ADULT/CHILD INTERACTIONS FOR 

MIAMI-DADE AND MONROE COUNTIES.   

 

WHEREAS, the Board of the Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc. (the 

“Board”) has been apprised of the program goals through the attached narrative, hereby 

incorporated by reference and the Finance Committee is in agreement with the goals described 

therein; 

 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee recommends approving this action and has presented 

said action to the Board for adoption and approval; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board approves the adoption of this action; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board to authorize the President and CEO to release 

a Request for Proposal for Professional Development Resources for Positive Adult/Child 

Interactions for Miami-Dade and Monroe Counties.   

 

 

 

 

 

Early Learning Coalition Board of Directors Meeting  

 

August 3, 2020 

 

Resolution: 08032020-02 



 

 

 

The foregoing resolution and attachment was offered by ___________, who moved its approval.  The 

motion was seconded by ___________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

_______________________. 

 

The vote was recorded as listed in the attached roll sheet. 

 

The chairperson thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted this 3
rd

 day of August, 

2020. 

  

 

EARLY LEARNING COALITION 

OF MIAMI-DADE/MONROE, INC, 

 

 

By: ___________________________ 

Board Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Background: 

On August 25, 2017, The Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc.  (ELC) released a 

Request for Proposal for Professional Development & Resources for Positive Adult/Child 

Interactions.  On December 4, 2017, Teachstone Training, LLC. was awarded the contract for a 

term of three years. In order to ensure continuity of services, the ELC is requesting to release a 

Request for Proposal for Professional Development & Resources for Positive Adult/Child 

Interactions for Miami-Dade and Monroe Counties.  

 

The vendor will provide each teacher individualized strategies for improving the quality of adult-

child interaction and raising Classroom Assessment Scoring System (CLASS) scores.  This will also 

include training, training materials, and any other products or services offered by this vendor.  Due 

to Coronavirus 2019, services including on-site trainings are subject to change.   

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

  

 

Action Requested: Authorize the President and CEO to release a Request for Proposal for 

Comprehensive Cleaning Services.   
 

Fiscal Impact:  The contract is for an approximate amount of $200,000.00 per fiscal year, 

which is subject to the availability of funding. 

 

Funding Source: APOOL* 

 

Strategic Goal:    Neediest Children     Providers 

    Youngest Children     Internal Capacity 

    Educate All      Funding     

  

══════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════ 

RESOLUTION: 08032020-03 

 

AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT AND CEO TO RELEASE A REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR 

COMPREHENSIVE CLEANING SERVICES.   

 

WHEREAS, the Board of the Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc. (the 

“Board”) has been apprised of the program goals through the attached narrative, hereby 

incorporated by reference and the Finance Committee is in agreement with the goals described 

therein; 

 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee recommends approving this action and has presented 

said action to the Board for adoption and approval; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board approves the adoption of this action; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board to authorize the President and CEO to release 

a Request for Proposal for Comprehensive Cleaning Services.   

 

 

 

 

*APOOL (Specific Funding Sources): Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, 

Florida Department of Children and Families, Department of Education Office of Early Learning Miami-Dade and Monroe 

(School Readiness Services, Voluntary Prekindergarten Services), Ocean Reef Community Foundation, University of Florida, 

Lastinger Center for Learning, Monroe County School District, Teen Parent Program, The Children’s Trust. 

 

 

Early Learning Coalition Board of Directors Meeting  

 

August 3, 2020 

 

Resolution: 08032020-03 



 

 

 

The foregoing resolution and attachment was offered by ___________, who moved its approval.  The 

motion was seconded by ___________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

_______________________. 

 

The vote was recorded as listed in the attached roll sheet. 

 

The chairperson thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted this 3
rd

 day of August, 

2020. 

  

 

EARLY LEARNING COALITION 

OF MIAMI-DADE/MONROE, INC, 

 

 

By: ___________________________ 

Board Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Background: 

On August 25, 2017, The Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc. (ELC) released a 

Request for Proposal for Cleaning/Janitorial Services.  On December 4, 2017, Miami Janitorial 

Supplies, Inc. was awarded the contract for a term of three years.  

 

The ELC has grown in the scope of services provided to the community.  The Early Learning 

Coalition has service centers in the North, Central and South Miami-Dade area.  The service centers 

provide services to the public including School Readiness eligibility services, technical assistance 

for parents and providers, as well as other related services.  Due to the Coronavirus 2019, the 

expenditures for janitorial services have increased.    

 

In order to ensure continuity of services, the ELC is requesting a release of a Request for Proposal 

for Comprehensive Cleaning Services for multiple locations across Miami-Dade and Monroe 

Counties on an as needed basis. 

 

Centers Address 

Headquarter 2555 Ponce de Leon Blvd, Suite 210, Coral Gables FL 33134 

Central Service Center 3250 SW 3rd Ave First Floor, Miami FL 33129 

Central 2
nd

 Floor 

QC/Assessment 

3250 SW 3
rd

 Ave, Suite 200, Miami FL 33129 

South Call Center                                                                                                                                                               18901 SW 106th Ave, Suite A234-235, Cutler Bay FL 33157 

South Service Center 

Location                                                                                                                                                    

18951 SW 106th Ave Suite B206 to 210 (208 main entrance) Cutler 

Bay FL 33157 

South Location  18901 SW 106 Ave Unit #231 Miami FL 33157 

South Location II  18901 SW 106 Ave Unit #A-210 Miami FL 33157 

South Location III  18901 SW 106 Ave Unit #A-246 Miami FL 33157 

South Rede-Permanent 

Location                                                                                                                                      

18901 SW 106 Ave Unit #B-203, 204, 205 Miami FL 33157 

North Office                                                                                                                                                                         15100 NW 67
th

 Ave, Suite 207, Miami Lakes, FL 33014 

EHS Permanent Location Edison Marketplace 6251 NW 7th Avenue Miami, FL 33150 

Warehouse                                                                                                                                                                  1819 NW 79 Ave, Doral FL 33126 

Key Largo 103400 Overseas Highways, Suite 112, Key Largo FL 33037 

Marathon 5800 Overseas Hwy, Marathon, FL 33050 

Key West 1111 12th street, suite 206, Key West FL 33040 

Satellite Locations 

Citrus Hialeah 

551 West 51th place 2nd floor, Hialeah FL 33012    

MDCPS- Neighborhood 

Resource Center 

7900 NW 27th Ave Suite # F9, Miami FL 33147 

Sant La, Haitian 

Neighborhood Center, Inc. 

5000 Biscayne Blvd Suite #110 Miami FL 33137 

Sant La, South Hub 900 NE 23 Avenue, Homestead FL 33033 

 

 



 

 

  

 

Action Requested: To approve the Early Learning Coalition’s Additional Amendment to the 

Annual Budget for fiscal year 2019-2020. 

 

Fiscal Impact:  Net increase of $6,432,351.00 to the Initial Budget for a new total budget of 

$225,902,465.00. 

 

Funding Source: Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and 

Families, Florida Department of Children and Families, Department of Education Office of 

Early Learning Miami-Dade and Monroe (School Readiness Services, Voluntary 

Prekindergarten Services), Save the Children Federation, Inc., University of Florida, Lastinger 

Center for Learning, Ocean Reef Community Foundation, The School Board of Miami-Dade 

County, Florida, Teenage Parent Program, Monroe County School District, Teen Parent 

Program, The Children’s Trust. 

 

Strategic Goal:    Neediest Children     Providers 

    Youngest Children     Internal Capacity 

    Educate All      Funding     

  

══════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════ 

RESOLUTION: 08032020-04 

 

TO APPROVE THE EARLY LEARNING COALITION’S ADDITIONAL AMENDMENT TO THE ANNUAL 

BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020. 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of the Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc. (the 

“Board”) has been apprised of the program goals through the attached narrative, hereby 

incorporated by reference and the Finance Committee is in agreement with the goals described 

therein; 

 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee recommends approving this action and has presented 

said action to the Board for adoption and approval; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board approves the adoption of this action; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board to approve the Early Learning Coalition’s 

Additional Amendment to the Annual Budget for fiscal year 2019-2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Early Learning Coalition Board of Directors Meeting  

 

August 3, 2020 

 

Resolution: 08032020-04 



 

 

The foregoing resolution and attachment was offered by ___________, who moved its approval.  The 

motion was seconded by ___________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

_______________________. 

 

The vote was recorded as listed in the attached roll sheet. 

 

The chairperson thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted this 3
rd

 day of August, 

2020. 

  

 

EARLY LEARNING COALITION 

OF MIAMI-DADE/MONROE, INC, 

 

 

By: ___________________________ 

Board Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Background: 

The Early Learning Coalition’s fiscal year began July 1, 2019.  Please see the additional amendment 

to the approved annual budget for fiscal year 2019-2020 below. 

  

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

  

 

Action Requested: Approval of the Evaluation Committee’s recommendation to award 

contracts for RFP#ELCMDM2020-05 (Curriculum Materials for Miami-Dade and Monroe 

Counties), and authorize the President and CEO to negotiate and execute contracts with the 

selected vendors. 

 

Fiscal Impact:  A total amount not to exceed $5,000,000.00 per fiscal year, which is subject to 

the availability of funding. 

 

Funding Source: APOOL* 

 

Strategic Goal:    Neediest Children     Providers 

    Youngest Children     Internal Capacity 

    Educate All      Funding 

 

══════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════ 

RESOLUTION: 08032020-05 

 

APPROVAL OF THE EVALUATION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATION TO AWARD CONTRACTS 

FOR RFP#ELCMDM2020-05 (CURRICULUM MATERIALS FOR MIAMI-DADE AND MONROE 

COUNTIES), AND AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT AND CEO TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE 

CONTRACTS WITH THE SELECTED VENDORS. 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of the Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc. (the 

“Board”) has been apprised of the program goals through the attached narrative, hereby 

incorporated by reference and the Finance Committee is in agreement with the goals described 

therein; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board approves the adoption of this action; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board to approve the Evaluation Committee’s 

recommendation to award contracts for RFP#ELCMDM2020-05 (Curriculum Materials for Miami-

Dade and Monroe Counties), and authorize the President and CEO to negotiate and execute 

contracts with the selected vendors. 

 

 

 

 

*APOOL (Specific Funding Sources): Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, 

Florida Department of Children and Families, Department of Education Office of Early Learning Miami-Dade and Monroe 

(School Readiness Services, Voluntary Prekindergarten Services), Ocean Reef Community Foundation, University of Florida, 

Lastinger Center for Learning, Monroe County School District, Teen Parent Program, The Children’s Trust. 

 

 

 

 

Early Learning Coalition Board of Directors Meeting  

 

August 3, 2020 

 

Resolution: 08032020-05 



The foregoing resolution and attachment was offered by ___________, who moved its approval.  The 

motion was seconded by ___________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

_______________________. 

 

The vote was recorded as listed in the attached roll sheet. 

 

The chairperson thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted this 3
rd

 day of August, 

2020. 

  

 

EARLY LEARNING COALITION 

OF MIAMI-DADE/MONROE, INC, 

 

 

By: ___________________________ 

Board Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Background: 

 

Resolution #06292020-03 authorized the President and CEO to release a Request for Proposal (RFP) 

for Curriculum Materials for Miami-Dade and Monroe Counties. On July 6, 2020, the Early 

Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc. (the Coalition) released RFP#ELCMDM2020-05 for 

Curriculum Materials. The Coalition received seven proposals that were reviewed by legal counsel. 

The proposals were reviewed by the following four (4) evaluators who made up the Evaluation 

Committee. 

 

Evaluation Committee Members:  

 

1. Tiffanie Bernard, Quality and Education Manager – Early Learning Coalition of Broward County  

2. Shaleen Fagundo, Owner/Director - Interamerican Learning Center 

3. Diahdenys Chavez, Regional Director - Catholic Charities of the Archdiocese of Miami, Inc. 

4. Mariacarmen Figueroa Capeles, Curriculum Specialist and General Training Coordinator for 

Redlands Christian Migrant Association (Alternate)  

 

On July 31, 2020, at the third Evaluation Committee Meeting, one proposer Tangible Play was 

deemed nonresponsive since they do not meet the requirement of being included on the Office of 

Early Learning approved curriculum list. The committee moved and passed a motion to recommend 

that the Coalition award a contract to all proposers, excluding Tangible Play.  

 

Awarding contracts to the proposers is in the Coalition’s best interest because awarding to multiple 

vendors allows the providers to have a greater selection of curriculum from the Office of Early 

Learning approved list. The effective date of the contracts will be soon after Board approval and 

successful negotiations of terms and conditions. Contracts may be amended based on providers’ 

curriculum selections on an as needed basis.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Evaluation Scorecard:  

 

 





(all dollar amounts in thousands '000) as of 7/23/2020
Children Served Amount Eligibility Breakdown

Total actual paid - YTD 28,165 Type
 Receiving 
Service % of Total

Diff Prior 
Month

% Change 
Prior Month Amount*

% of 
Total

Diff Prior 
Month

% Change 
Prior Month

Total actual paid - June 2020 22,625 AT Risk (BG1) 3,969       17.44% 1,124       39.51% $1,741.50 16.36% $589.27 51.14%
Income Eligible (BG8) 18,191     79.92% 120          0.66% $8,645.47 81.20% $1,073.75 14.18%

Net Slot Payment and Gold Seal 9,580$    Florida One Parent -           0.00% -           - -$             0.00% -$            -
Match (BG8 and CCEP) -$         Transitional Child Care (BG5) 326          1.43% (49)           -13.07% $148.05 1.39% ($3.02) -2.00%
Total cost (in thousands) (incl match) 10,647$  Work Force Development (BG3x) 273          1.20% (36)           -11.65% $111.60 1.05% ($3.65) -3.17%
Change month over month CCEP (Purchasing Pool) (CCPP) 3              0.01% 2              200.00% $0.03 0.00% ($0.17) -85.15%
Total Net Increase(decrease) children 1,191       ARRA -           0.00% -           - -$             0.00% $0.00 -
Net increase/(decrease) dollars 1,656$    BGSNT -           0.00% -           - -$             0.00% $0.00 -

BGCSD&BGCSO -           0.00% -           - $0.00 0.00% $0.00 -
Monthly Activity Amount Total 22,762     100% 1,161       5.37% $10,646.64 100% $1,656.18 18.42%

Beginning Census 21,434     Minus 137 Overlap 22,625     

NET Increase/(Decrease) 1,191       GOLD SEAL $1,066.79 10.02% $160.62 17.72%

Total 22,625    
p

categories above) -           -           - -$             $0.00 -
Current Data SFW GOLD SEAL -$             - $0.00 -

Enrolled As of Jul 23, 2020 20,692     Age Break Down

Projected Paid for Jul (96% of enrolled) 19,864     
SR applications in the Queue
Ages 0-5 52            Infant 2,756 12.18% 121          4.59% $1,463.88 13.75% $94.46 6.90%

Ages 6-9 7              Toddler 2,878 12.72% 156          5.73% $1,463.86 13.75% $114.50 8.49%
Ages 10-13 -           Three Year Old 3,611 15.96% 110          3.14% $1,746.91 16.41% $98.44 5.97%
VPK Enrolled As of  Jul 23, 2020 Pre-School 6,368 28.15% 539          9.25% $3,034.48 28.50% $580.93 23.68%

Regular 1,786       Sub-Total 15,613     69.01% 926         6.30% $7,709.14 72.41% $888.34 13.02%
Summer 112          School Age: 6 yrs 2,185 14.86% 118          5.71% $814.63 7.65% $216.74 36.25%

SISP School Age: 7 yrs 1,765 12.00% 79            4.69% $651.04 6.11% $180.44 38.34%
School Age: 8 yrs 1,453 9.88% 71            5.14% $521.96 4.90% $139.46 36.46%

SISP             14 
Unduplicated School Age: 5 - 8 
yrs** 5,995 40.87% 117          1.99% $2,230.50 20.95% $561.76 33.66%

Regular      10,543 School Age: 9 yrs and above 1,999 13.63% 153          8.29% $707.00 6.64% $206.09 41.14%

Summer           106 School Age (Duplicated) 18 0.12% 15            500.00% $0.00 0.00% $0.00 -

School Age (Unduplicated) 7,976 35.25% 255          3.30% $2,937.50 27.59% $767.84 35.39%

SISP             55 Other -           0.00% 0 - $0.00 0.00% $0.00 -
Regular      22,114 Sub-Total 7,976       35.25% 255         3.30% $2,937.50 27.59% $767.84 35.39%
Summer           420 Total 22,625     104% 1,191       5.56% $10,646.64 100% $1,656.18 18.42%

**There are 630 5-year-old within this count. 

Note: Legends with too small percentage are not shown on the pie chart.

All Eligible Clients-Paid Dollars Paid by Age Category

Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe
School Readiness Slot Utilization Snapshot - Miami-Dade

June 2020

Children Paid by Billing Group Dollars Paid by Billing Group 

% of 
Total

Diff Prior 
Month

% Change 
Prior Month

VPK Total Actual Paid - June 2020

VPK Total Actual Paid - YTD

Type
 Receiving 

Service % of Total
Diff Prior 

Month
% Change 

Prior Month Amount-$

3,969 

18,191 

-
326 273 

3 

-
- -

Children Paid by BG Group
AT Risk (BG1)

Income Eligible (BG8)

Florida One Parent

Transitional Child Care (BG5)

Work Force Development
(BG3x)
CCEP (Purchasing Pool)
(CCPP)
ARRA

BGSNT

15,613 / 66%

5,995 / 25%

1,999 / 9% - / 0%

Children By Age Group
Children 0 - 5

School Age 5 -8

School Age 9 and
Above

Other



(all dollar amounts in thousands '000) as of 7/23/2020

Eligibility Breakdown

Children Served Amount Type

 Receiving 
Service

% of 
Total

Diff Prior 
Month

% Change 
Prior Month Amount

% of 
Total

Diff Prior 
Month

% Change 
Prior Month

AT Risk (BG1) 103         24.88% 23            28.75% $43.83 22.23% $14.33 48.58%
Total actual paid - June 2020 410 Income Eligible (BG8) 309         74.64% (19)           -5.79% $152.12 77.15% $17.61 13.09%

Florida One Parent -          0.00% 0 - -$           0.00% -$        -
Net Slot Payment and Gold Seal 189$          Transitional Child Care (BG5) -          0.00% 0 - $0.00 0.00% $0.00 -
Match (BG8 and CCEP) -$           Work Force Development (BG3x) 2             0.48% 1 100.00% $1.23 0.62% $0.62 102.74%
Total cost (in thousands) (incl match) 197$          CCEP (Purchasing Pool) (CCPP) -          0.00% 0 - $0.00 0.00% $0.00 -
Change month over month ARRA -          0.00% -           - $0.00 0.00% $0.00 -
Total Net Increase(decrease) children 6                Total 414         100% 5              1.22% $197.18 100% $32.57 19.78%

Net increase/(decrease) dollars 33$            Minus 4 Overlap 410         

Monthly Activity Amount GOLD SEAL -          - -           - $8.54 4.33% $0.55 6.87%

Beginning Census 404            BGCSD+BGCSO -          0.00% -           - -             0.00% $0.00 -
Net Increase/(Decrease) 6                Age Break Down

Total 410          Type
 Receiving 
Service

% of 
Total

Diff Prior 
Month

% Change 
Prior Month Amount-$

% of 
Total

Diff Prior 
Month

% Change 
Prior Month

Infant 58 13.33% 8              16.00% $32.68 16.57% $4.03 14.06%

Toddler 69 15.86% 4              6.15% $37.01 18.77% $0.78 2.16%
Current Data Three Year Old 72 16.55% 10            16.13% $34.26 17.37% $3.86 12.70%
Enrolled As of Jul 23, 2020 360 Pre-School 107 24.60% 9              9.18% $48.86 24.78% $10.33 26.81%
Projected Paid for Jul (96% of enrolled) 346            Sub-Total 306         70.34% 31           11.27% $152.81 77.50% $19.00 14.20%

School Age: 6 32 7.36% -5 -13.51% $11.86 6.01% $3.51 42.10%
Ages 0-5 0 School Age: 7 30 6.90% 3              11.11% $9.94 5.04% $4.55 84.34%
Ages 6-9 0 School Age: 8 17 3.91% (5)             -22.73% $6.24 3.16% $1.51 31.82%
Ages 10-13 0 School Age: 5 - 8** 86 19.77% (10)           -10.42% $30.18 15.31% $9.37 45.05%
VPK Enrolled as of Jul 23, 2020 1 School Age: 9 - 10 33 7.59% -6 -15.38% $11.01 5.59% $2.68 32.17%

School Age: 11 - 12 10 2.30% 3 42.86% $3.18 1.61% $1.51 90.58%
VPK Total Actual Paid - June 2020 18 School Age: Other Age 0 0.00% 0 - $0.00 0.00% $0.00 -

School Age Total 129         29.66% (13)           -9.15% $44.37 22.50% $13.57 44.03%
Other -          0.00% -           - -$           0.00% -$        -

Sub-Total 129         29.66% (13)          -9.15% $44.37 22.50% $13.57 44.03%
Total 435         100% 18            4.32% $197.18 100% $32.57 19.78%
Minus 25 Overlap 410         
**There are 0 0-4year-old within this count.

SR applications in the Queue

Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe
School Readiness Slot Utilization Snapshot - Monroe

June 2020

Children Paid by Billing Group Dollars Paid by Billing Group

All Eligible Clients-Paid Dollars Paid by Age Category

1 0 3
3 0 9

-

-
2

-

-

Children Paid by BG Group
AT Risk (BG1)

Income Eligible (BG8)

Florida One Parent

Transitional Child Care (BG5)

Work Force Development (BG3x)

CCEP (Purchasing Pool) (CCPP)

ARRA306 / 70.34%

86 / 19.77%

33 / 7.59%
10 / 2.30%

Children By Age Group

Children 0 - 5

School Age 5 - 8

School Age 9 - 10

School Age 11 - 12



(all dollar amounts in thousands '000) as of 7/23/2020
Children Served Amount Eligibility Breakdown

Total actual paid - YTD 281 Type
 Receiving 
Service % of Total

Diff Prior 
Month

% Change 
Prior Month Amount*

% of 
Total

Diff Prior 
Month

% Change 
Prior Month

Total actual paid - June 2020 88 V 88            100.00% (21)           -19.27% $40.33 100.00% ($8.33) -17.11%

Net Slot Payment and Gold Seal 36$        
Match (BG8 and CCEP) -$       
Total cost (in thousands) (incl match) 40$        
Change month over month
Total Net Increase(decrease) children (21)          
Net increase/(decrease) dollars (8)$         

Monthly Activity Amount Total 88            100% (21)          -19.27% $40.33 100% ($8.33) -17.11%
Beginning Census 109         Minus 0 Overlap 88            

NET Increase/(Decrease) (21)          GOLD SEAL $3.87 9.59% ($1.00) -20.55%

Total 88          -           -           - -$            $0.00 -
Current Data -$            - $0.00 -

Enrolled As of Jul 23, 2020 53           Age Break Down

Projected Paid for Jul (96% of enrolled) 51           

Infant 40 42.55% (10)           -20.00% $19.47 48.28% ($4.91) -20.12%

Toddler 26 27.66% (6)             -18.75% $12.88 31.93% ($1.41) -9.86%
Three Year Old 10 10.64% (1)             -9.09% $4.24 10.51% ($0.08) -1.90%
Pre-School 7 7.45% -           0.00% $2.16 5.36% ($0.47) -17.78%

Sub-Total 83           88.30% (17)          -17.00% $38.75 96.08% ($6.86) -15.05%
School Age: 6 yrs 4 4.26% -           0.00% $0.81 2.00% ($0.11) -12.25%
School Age: 7 yrs 1 1.06% -           0.00% $0.02 0.06% ($0.14) -85.00%
School Age: 8 yrs 1 1.06% (3)             -75.00% $0.02 0.06% ($0.48) -95.26%
Unduplicated School Age: 5 - 8 
yrs** 6 6.38% (3)             -33.33% $0.85 2.12% ($0.73) -46.10%
School Age: 9 yrs and above 5 5.32% (3)             -37.50% $0.73 1.81% ($0.73) -50.18%
School Age Total Includes 0 
Overlap 11 11.70% (6)            -35.29% $1.58 3.92% ($1.46) -48.06%

School Age (Unduplicated) 11 11.70% (6)             -35.29% $1.58 3.92% ($1.46) -48.06%

Other -           0.00% 0 - $0.00 0.00% $0.00 -
Sub-Total 11           11.70% (6)            -35.29% $1.58 3.92% ($1.46) -48.06%

Total 94            100% (23)          -19.66% $40.33 100% ($8.33) -17.11%
Minus 6 Overlap 88            

**There are 0 5-year-old within this count. 

Note: Legends with too small percentage are not shown on the pie chart.

All Eligible Clients-Paid Dollars Paid by Age Category

Early Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe
DCF Title V Slot Utilization Snapshot - Miami-Dade

June 2020

Children Paid by Billing Group Dollars Paid by Billing Group 

Type
 Receiving 

Service % of Total
Diff Prior 

Month
% of 
Total

Diff Prior 
Month

% Change 
Prior Month

% Change 
Prior Month Amount-$

88 

Children Paid by BG Group

V

83 / 88%

6 / 7%
5 / 5%- / 0%

Children By Age Group
Children 0 - 5

School Age 5 -8

School Age 9 and
Above

Other
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Action Requested: The Executive Leadership Team (“ELT”) recommends termination of the School Readiness (“SR”) 
and Voluntary Prekindergarten (“VPK”) Contracts for the 2019‐2020 FY and revocation of eligibility for a period of 
five (5) years subject to provider testimony and verification of supporting documentation submitted by provider. 
══════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════ 

Background 

 
Early Learning Coalition Review Hearing Committee 

 
June 25, 2020 

 
Small World Montessori Method School II – C11MD1671 

 
14100 NE 6th Ave, North Miami ,FL. 33161 

Small World Montessori Method School II 

 

 License Capacity: 71 

 Care Level offered: 1 year to 8 years 

 Approximate Children enrolled for SR: 37 

 Approximate Children enrolled for VPK: 21 

 Approximate number of providers within the same 

zip code offering the same services: 17 

 Accreditations/Gold Seal: N/A 

 Provider has offered services approximately since: 

2008 

 2018‐2019 reimbursements: Approximately 

$60,118.42 

 

Issues 
 

Disqualified List 
 

 On  2/05/2020,  Lisney  Badillo,  Director  of  Contracts 
and Procurement, was informed via email that Small 
World  Montessori  Method  School  Inc.  dba  Small 
World Montessori Method School II was placed on the 
Florida  Child  Care  Food  Program  (“CCFP”)  United 
States Department of Agriculture  (“USDA”) National 
Disqualified List on 1/31/2020.  

 

Comments: 

 On  5/10/2019,  the  Contracts  Department  was 
informed via email Small World Montessori Method 
School  Inc.  dba  Small  World  Montessori  Method 
School  II,  Yasmeen  Vayani  and  Adil  Vayani,  were 
placed on the CCFP USDA Disqualified Providers List 
on 4/25/2019.  
 

 On 6/11/2019  the  Provider was  granted  Petitioners 
Motion to Stay Final Order until the resolution of the 
appeal. 

 
Additional Information:  

 The School Readiness (“SR”) contract commenced on 
8/07/2019.  The  Voluntary  Prekindergarten  (“VPK”) 
contract commenced on 8/19/2019. 

 Provider  has  not  been  audited  by  Fraud  this  fiscal 
year. 

 The center is currently open. 
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Action Requested: The Executive Leadership Team (“ELT”) recommends termination of the School Readiness (“SR”) 
and Voluntary Prekindergarten (“VPK”) Contracts for the 2019‐2020 FY and revocation of eligibility for a period of 
five (5) years subject to provider testimony and verification of supporting documentation submitted by provider. 
══════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════ 

Background 

 

 

Early Learning Coalition Review Hearing Committee 
 

June 25, 2020 
 

Small World Montessori Method School III – C11MD0013 
 

530 NW 165 Street Road Miami, FL 33169 

Small World Montessori Method School III 

 License Capacity: 96 

 Care Level offered: 1 year to 8 years 

 Approximate Children enrolled for SR: 16 

 Approximate Children enrolled for VPK: 9 

 Approximate number of providers within the same 

zip code offering the same services: 22 

 Accreditations/Gold Seal: N/A 

 Provider has offered services approximately since: 

2008 

 2018‐2019 reimbursements: Approximately 

$122,779.90 

 

Issues 
 

Disqualified List 
 

 The owner who appears on Sunbiz, Shaukat Vayani, is 
the father of Adil Vayani (who was placed the Florida 
Child  Care  Food  Program  (“CCFP”)  United  States 
Department  of  Agriculture  (“USDA”)  National 
Disqualified List on 1/31/2020). 
 

 As  per  rule  6M‐4.610  FAC,  Program  Ineligibility.  For 
the purpose of this subsection "individual associated 
with  a  provider"  means  an  individual  or  family 
member  of  an  individual  who,  regardless  of 
compensation,  holds  a  management  position, 
oversees the operations of a provider, or is an officer, 
shareholder,  beneficial  owner  or  member  of  the 
board of directors of a provider. A provider shall not 
be eligible to contract to offer the SR program if any 
of  the  following  circumstances  apply:  An  individual 
associated  with  the  provider  was,  or  is,  associated 
with  another  provider  that  is  on  the  United  States 
Department of Agriculture National Disqualified List is 
ineligible to provide services. 

 

 Adil Vayani was previously listed as the Director of 
the facility.  

 
 
Continued on Page 2 
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Early Learning Coalition Review Hearing Committee 
 

June 25, 2020 
 

Small World Montessori Method School III – C11MD0013 
 

530 NW 165 Street Road Miami, FL 33169 

Issues 
Continued from Page 1 

 
Comments: 

 On 5/10/2019, the Contracts Department was informed via email Small World Montessori Method School Inc. dba 
Small  World  Montessori  Method  School  II,  Yasmeen  Vayani  and  Adil  Vayani,  were  placed  on  the  CCFP  USDA 
Disqualified Providers List on 4/25/2019.  
 

 On 6/11/2019 the Provider was granted Petitioners Motion to Stay Final Order until the resolution of the appeal.  
 

 Not having received a response to this Court's order of December 11, 2019, requiring appellant to file the initial brief, 
the above‐styled cause was dismissed. 

 
 
Additional Information:  

 The School Readiness  (“SR”)  contract  commenced on 8/7/2019. The Voluntary Prekindergarten  (“VPK”)  contract 
commenced on 8/19/2019. 
 

 Provider has not been audited by Loss Prevention this fiscal year.  
 

 The center is currently open. 
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Action Requested: The Executive Leadership Team (“ELT”) recommends termination of the School Readiness (“SR”) 
Contract for the 2019‐2020 FY and revocation of eligibility for a period of five (5) years subject to provider testimony 
and verification of supporting documentation submitted by provider. 
══════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════ 

Background 

 

 

 
Early Learning Coalition Review Hearing Committee 

 
June 25, 2020 

 
Small World Montessori Preschool – C11MD0942 

 
700 NE 177th Street Miami, FL 33162 

Small World Montessori Preschool 

 

 License Capacity: 12 

 Care Level offered: 2 years to 8 years 

 Approximate Children enrolled for SR: 0 

 Approximate Children enrolled for VPK: N/A 

 Approximate number of providers within the same 

zip code offering the same services: 18 

 Accreditations/Gold Seal: N/A 

 Provider has offered services approximately since: 

2008 

 2018‐2019 reimbursements: Approximately $0 

 

Issues 
 

Disqualified List 
 

 The owner who appears on Sunbiz, Shaukat Vayani, is 
the father of Adil Vayani (who was placed the Florida 
Child  Care  Food  Program  (“CCFP”)  United  States 
Department  of  Agriculture  (“USDA”)  National 
Disqualified List on 1/31/2020). 
 

 As per rule 6M‐4.610 FAC, Program Ineligibility. For the 
purpose of this subsection "individual associated with 
a provider" means an individual or family member of 
an individual who, regardless of compensation, holds 
a management position, oversees the operations of a 
provider, or is an officer, shareholder, beneficial owner 
or member of the board of directors of a provider. A 
provider shall not be eligible to contract to offer the SR 
program  if  any of  the  following circumstances apply: 
An  individual associated with the provider was, or  is, 
associated with another provider that is on the United 
States Department of Agriculture National Disqualified 
List is ineligible to provide services. 

  
 
 
Continued on Page 2 
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Early Learning Coalition Review Hearing Committee 

 
June 25, 2020 

 
Small World Montessori Preschool – C11MD0942 

 
700 NE 177th Street Miami, FL 33162 

Issues 
Continued from Page 1 

 
Comments: 

 On 5/10/2019, the Contracts Department was informed via email Small World Montessori Method School Inc. dba 
Small  World  Montessori  Method  School  II,  Yasmeen  Vayani  and  Adil  Vayani,  were  placed  on  the  CCFP  USDA 
Disqualified Providers List on 4/25/2019.  
 

 On 6/11/2019 the Provider was granted Petitioners Motion to Stay Final Order until the resolution of the appeal.  
 

 Not having received a response to this Court's order of December 11, 2019, requiring appellant to file the initial brief, 
the above‐styled cause was dismissed. 

 
Additional Information:  

 The School Readiness (“SR”) contract commenced on 8/7/2019. 
 

 Provider has not been audited by Loss Prevention this fiscal year. 
 

 The center is currently closed due to COVID‐19.  
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PERSONAL 

 
  Name: Joycelyn Jones Lawrence, M.D.   
 
  Home Phone: (  
 
  Office Phone: (  
 
  Home Address:   
                               Plantation, FL  33323 
            
 
  Primary Department: Administration  
 
  Citizenship: USA 
 
   
HIGHER EDUCATION 
 
  University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill 
  Fellow; Faculty Development Program 
  August 2005 – June 2006 
 
  University of Miami / Jackson Memorial Hospital 

Residency Family Medicine 
July 1996 ‐1999 

   
  University of Arizona College of Medicine 
  MD; conferred May 11, 1996 
  1990‐1996 
  Tucson, Arizona 
   
  Spelman College 
  Pre‐Med/Biology 
  1979‐1983 
  Atlanta, GA   
 
  Crestwood Academy 
  Registered Respiratory Therapist 
  1986‐1987 

Tempe, Arizona 
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EXPERIENCE 
 
  University of Miami, Department of Family Medicine 
    and Office of Community Health Affairs 
  Voluntary Assistant Professor 
  October 1999 – September 2000 
 
  Partners in Prevention of Substance Abuse (PIPSA)  
  July 2000 ‐ 2004 

University of Miami, Department of Family Medicine 
    And Office of Community Health Affairs 
 
  Assistant Professor 
  September 2000 – July 2000 
 

University of Miami, Department of Family Medicine  
and Office of  Community Health  Affairs 
 

  Assistant Professor 
Medical Director, Dr. John T. Macdonald Foundation   
School Health Initiative   

  July 2000 – Jan 2016 
 
  Chief Medical Officer 

Jessie Trice Community Health Center 
Jan 2016 ‐ current 

 
 
 
PUBLICATIONS / Presentations 
 
“Lawrence J; Aftab A; Batista S, Burdick A; Fournier A;  Simmons S;( June 2011).Telehealth:  An 
Evaluation of Its Place and Usefulness Within the School Setting. Poster presented at the 
National Assembly of School Based Health Care(NASBHC)2011 Annual Meeting”.  
   
Sonia M. Batista, MS, RD, LD/N, RN; Joycelyn Lawrence, MD; Scott Simmons, MS; and Anne E. 
Burdick, MD, MPH. Implementation of Telehealth in an Urban Public School System: Lessons 
Learned From the First Year of Operation [Poster]. University of Miami Miller School of Medicine, 
Miami, Florida, USA 
 
Aftab A, Lawrence J. A qualitative analysis of barriers for screening of sexually transmitted 
diseases in a high school population of Miami Dade County, Florida [Poster]. Women’s Health 
Research Day, University of Miami Miller School of Medicine, March 16 2008: Miami, FL. 
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Aftab A, Lawrence J. A qualitative analysis of barriers in screening for sexually transmitted 
diseases (STDs) in the youth population of Miami‐Dade County, Florida. Family Medicine and 
Community Health. Community‐University Exposition. Victoria, British Columbia, Canada: May 
4‐7, 2008. 
 
Aftab. A, Fournier. A, Lawrence. J. School Health Index Pilot Project‐ Combating Obesity Epidemic 
in Children and Adolescents by Helping Schools  to Evaluate and Strengthen their School Health 
Policies  and  Procedures.  Also  presented  at  the  22nd  CDC/DHPE National  Conference on Health 
Education and Health Promotion and 2004 SOPHE Midyear Conference, May‐5‐7, 2004, Orlando, 
Florida. 
 
Aftab. A,,  Lawrence.  J. Key Health Services and Health Care accessibility Through School‐Based 
Heath Centers: A preliminary Analysis. Also presented at The First  International Conference on 
Inner City Health Toronto, Canada. October 3‐6,2002. 
 
Society of Teachers in Family Medicine Conference; San Diego, CA; February 28 – March 2, 2002. 
Poster presentation: The Role of Service‐Learning in School Based Health Centers. 
 
 
PROFESSIONAL / Memberships 
 
  American Medical Association 
  1996 – current 
 
  American Academy of Family Physicians 
  1990 – current 
 
  Florida license granted July 7, 1999 
  Board certified Family Medicine; September, 2000 ‐ current 
   
 
  BLS certified current 
 
  School Base Health Association 
  Member July 2000 – current 
 
  Miami‐Dade School Health Medical Advisory Committee 
  Member March 2002 – current 
  Co‐Chair January 2005 – August 2007 
 
 

Evaluation and Quality Panel of  NASBHC 
  Member July 2004 – 2007 
 
  Governmental Affairs Committee of NASBHC 
  Member January 2006 ‐ 2008 
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TEACHING 
 

‐ Precepting APRN students and medical students from multiple academic institutions 
through rotations with Jessie Trice Community Health System 

‐ Instructional supervision and evaluation of health science students and resident 
physicians for the Department of Family Medicine and School Based health centers 

‐ Supervision of nursing students  
‐ Annual Pediatric lecture series with Dept of Family Medicine 

 
SERVICE  
 
Jessie Trice Community Health System (2016 – current). Responsibilities include oversight of the 
strategic direction and disease management of primary and behavioral health programs at 
JTCHC. Responsibilities also include clinical data base development and analysis, research 
collaborations and outcomes that meet with the organizational mission and vision, as well as 
balancing the mission with business and financial growth goals as established by the CEO and 
BOD. 

 Provider oversight 

 Patient care 

 Design and implementation of systems approaches to care 

 Collaboration with chief financial officer for ensuring productivity 

 Provision of oversight to school based health medical programs 

 Provision of oversight to school based behavioral health program 

 Oversight to nutrition grants 

 Implementation of telehealth for JTCHS 
 
 
Dr. John T. Macdonald Foundation School Health Initiative (1996‐2016).  Primary 
responsibilities as medical director included: 

‐ Development and implementation of all programmatic components 
‐ Budget oversight 
‐ Community liaison linkage 
‐ provision of outpatient medical care ( chronic illnesses, emergent management  
‐ follow‐up care of inpatient clients 
‐  oversight for clinical teams that are composed of nurse practitioners, registered nurses, 

health support technicians and social workers.  
 
Additional duties included development and implementation of policies and procedures for  nine 
school based health centers, development and implementation of nursing protocols, 
collaborating with Miami‐Dade County Public Schools Full Service School Division and Miami‐
Dade Department of Health, ensuring clinic flow and quality assurance of patient care and 
medical record keeping, ensuring compliance with state regulations, and organizing health fairs. 
 
Successful grants written and procured include;  
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 The Children’s Trust for health services within two school based health centers in North 
Miami 2006 

 The Children’s Trust for health services within two school based health centers in Overtown 
(Booker T. Washington Sr. High) 2007 

 The Children’s Fund for expanding asthma management within the school setting. 2009 

 Health Foundation of South Florida – PEARLS (Prevention, Education, and Access to Receive 
Lasting Smiles) an oral health grant which places dentists on‐site within school health 
centers to provide preventive treatment and instruct nursing staff on placement of fluoride 
varnishes (Awarded 2012) 

 CMS Health Care Innovation Award 2015 for school based health care expanding workforce 
with community health workers, telehealth, exploration of billing services, and emergency 
room diversion. Funding used to demonstrate capabilities and values of school based health 
centers as viable options/safety net for health care services. 

 Batchelor Foundation – support funding for school health programs (Awarded 2005 ‐ 2016) 

 School Based Health Alliance – SBIRT (Substance Abuse Intervention and Referrals to 
Treatment) 2019‐2020, a grant with emphasis on  a national school‐based SBIRT learning 
collaborative to share tools and resources, increase partnerships and publication, 
collectively agree on best practices to share with the field, and promote the development 
of clear outcome measures 

 School Based Health Alliance – HIV ECHO  (2019‐2020), a grant to reduce Human 
Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) and Sexually Transmitted Disease (STD) acquisition risk for 
adolescents, particularly those who identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and 
questioning (LGBTQ) or gender non‐conforming  
 

 
 

Department of Family Medicine.  Service includes precepting for residents and medical students 
within school based health centers. Service also includes providing monthly lectures to resident 
physicians on pediatric‐related topics. 
 
Jefferson Reaves Family Health Center. Primary responsibility is that of providing outpatient 
care for adult and pediatric clients (patient load of 14‐16 per half day).  July 2000 – current. 
Other responsibilities have included precepting resident physicians. 
 
Partners in Prevention of Substance Abuse. Responsible for implementation of tobacco 
awareness, prevention and cessation course into second‐year medical student curriculum. July 
2000‐2004 
 
RESEARCH 
 
Research responsibilities include tracking of students in school based health centers, such 
immunization rates and body mass index screening and serving as co‐cluster leader for the 
National Assembly on School–Based Health Care quality assurance collaborative designed to 
strengthen the delivery of adolescent preventive services, including sexually transmitted disease 
/ HIV prevention. 
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International Study on Asthma and Allergies in Childhood (2009 – 2012) 

Program utilizing validated survey tool for identifying undiagnosed asthmatic children. 
Principal Investigator: Joycelyn Lawrence, M.D., Co‐Principal Investigators, Asma Aftab, 
M.D., MPH 

 
Promoting Awareness of Chlamydia through School Based Health Centers (2008 – 2014) 

Approach to promote STD screening amongst inner city adolescent females. Principal 
Investigator: : Joycelyn Lawrence, M.D., Co‐Principal Investigators, Asma Aftab, M.D., 
MPH 

 
School‐Based Intervention to Prevent Metabolic Syndrome (2007‐2010) 

Implementation of an evidence based approach within  the school setting to prevent 
metabolic syndrome. Principal Investigator: Alan Delamater; Co‐Principal Investigators, 
Asma Aftab MD, MPH; Arlette Perry, PhD, Janine Sanchez, MD, Joycelyn Lawrence, MD 

 
COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES 
 
Participant in community health fairs and health education conferences for local churches and 
schools 
 
Volunteerism:  helped to develop state strategic plan for asthma for Florida Department of 
Health (medical management) 
 
Health Advisory Committee member Church of the Open Door 
 
AWARDS / RECOGNITION 
 
Legacy South Florida Top Black Physicians 2017 and 2018 
 
Recognition Award for community service to John F. Kennedy Middle School 2009‐2010 
 
Department of Health Certificate of Appreciation for Community Service, June 2006 and June 
2008 
 
Bruce Heiken Vision Fund Community Recognition Award 2005. 
 
 
REFERENCES 
References are available upon request. 



EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF MIAMI-DADE/MONROE, INC. 

Board Responsibilities Attestation Form Upon Re-Appointment 

The purpose of this form is to ensure that reappointed members of the Board of Directors of the Early 
Learning Coalition of Miami-Dade/Monroe, Inc. (“ELC”) continue to hold the same legal status as when 
they were originally appointed as Board Members.  

Each Board Member must sign this form within 30 days of being re-appointed to their position as Board 
Member of the ELC. 

Board Member Name:  _________________________________________________________ 

Board Member Address:__ ___________________ 

1. The undersigned reappointed Board Member acknowledges and affirms that:

 My professional status and conflict-of-interest position has not changed since the
initial appointment.

 I am not aware of any legal or ethical impediment to my continued service as an
ELC Board Member.

2. As a Board Member of the ELC, I understand that I have a duty of care to always work in the
best interests of the organization, a duty of loyalty to put the good of the organization first and
avoid any conflicts of interest and a duty of obedience to be faithful to the central goals of the
ELC and follow its governing documents.

3. In furtherance of these commitments and responsibilities I will put forth my best individual
effort to:

 Attend, fully prepare for, and diligently participate in Board meetings, committee
meetings and special events of the ELC.

 Actively participate in helping to develop resources for the ELC.

 Act in the best interests of the ELC, and excuse myself from discussions and votes
where I have a conflict of interest.

 Strive to keep abreast of trends, issues, and current developments that may affect
the organization.

Loreen  Chant



 Stay informed about what is going on in the ELC, asking questions and requesting
information as needed. I will participate in and take responsibility for making
decisions on issues, policies and other Board matters.

 Actively voice my opinions and concerns, and open-mindedly consider everyone
else’s opinions and concerns, in all Board decision making. I will trust that we all
share a constant passion for this organization’s mission.

 Exercise my authority as a Board Member only when acting in a meeting with the
full Board or when appointed by the Board.

 Represent the organization in a positive and supportive manner at all times.

 Work collaboratively with staff and other Board Members as partners toward
achievement of our goals.

 Strictly maintain the confidentiality of all privileged or sensitive information
provided to me to safeguard the organization’s reputation and integrity, as well as
the privacy rights of individuals and donors connected with the organization and
the Board. I accept this principle as one that will survive my period of Board
service.

I certify by my signature that I understand the foregoing attestation and commitments that continue 
to accompany my Board service for the ELC and will do my best to live up to them as a member 
of the Board of Directors of the ELC. 

_______________________________________ 
Signature 

_______________________________________ __________________ 
Signature Date 

7.22.2020



















Erin Smeltzer is the Executive Director of the Association of Early Learning Coalitions. For over fifteen 

years, she has tirelessly advocated for advancements in quality early childhood education and 

experiences. Through her experience as an early childhood educator and child care center director she 

learned the ability of children to rise above any expectation, if given the opportunity. She endeavored to 

share this truth by serving as an undergraduate practicum supervisor with Florida State University. Every 

intern who entered her school was immersed in the idea that early childhood must become a priority in 

our society. Erin used her positions as President of the local NAEYC affiliate and Florida AEYC Public 

Policy representative to continue advocating for this cause on a national level. Eager for a more 

influential platform, Erin joined the Florida Department of Education, where she managed all of the 

statewide quality initiatives funded by the Child Care Development Fund. She was directly responsible 

for managing numerous multimillion‐dollar projects aimed at promoting an integrated early childhood 

system that prioritized Florida’s youngest children. Her priorities included initiatives in professional 

development, infant/toddler quality, preschool quality, inclusion, and continuous quality improvement. 

In her current role, she facilitates streamlining best practices across the state and building partnerships 

that can help give all children an equitable early learning experience. Erin received her Bachelor’s degree 

in Child and Family Development from the University of Georgia and Master’s degree in Education from 

Nova Southeastern University.  

 



 

 

Break-out Groups for August 3, 2020 Annual Meeting 

 

Provider Sustaining and Strengthening 

Bob Eadie – Executive Committee Member 

Mercy Castiglione – Executive Leadership Team  

Victor Caballero – Staff Support 

Fiorella Altare Christie– Staff Support 

Paloma Lopez Barcena- Staff Support 

Chuck Mohr 

Rick Beasley 

Loreen Chant 

Jenni Roig 

Gladys Montes 

 

 

Monroe Initiatives  

Gilda Ferradaz – Executive Committee Member 

Sandra Gonzalez – Executive Leadership Team 

Laurie Dunn – Staff Support 

Ileana Vallejo – Staff Support 

Sandi Bisceglia 

Deena Hoagland 

Francia Alexandre 

Aaron Slavens  

Lisa Taylor 

 

Capacity Building 

Adrian Alfonso – Executive Committee Member 



 

 

Angelo Parrino – Executive Leadership Team 

Anabel Espinosa– Staff Support 

Matthew Bruno 

Marisol Diaz 

Jane McQueen 

Jim Haj 

Dr. Judy Schaechter  

 

 

Leading for Equity 

Maurice Kemp – Executive Committee Member 

Pam Hollingsworth– Executive Leadership Team 

Adelina Gross– Staff Support 

Diana Lane – Staff Support 

Ana Sejeck – Staff Support 

Dave Lawrence 

Abilio Rodriguez 

Dr. Joycelyn Jones Lawrence 

Iris Strahan 

Gerald Schwartz 

Alex Soto 
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